
I. MEETING COMMENCES

a. Roll Call
b. Welcome new members
c. Elevate an alternate member into the vacant full member seat
d. Election of vice chairperson

II. MINUTES APPROVAL

a. Approve the Planning Board meeting minutes of Sept. 9, 2021, as held on Sept. 20, 2021

III. INFORMATION EXCHANGE

a. a. Approve Planning Board schedule of meetings for 2022
b. Staff Review Committee meeting of 10-21-21: Hill View Mini Barns minor site plan

amendment
c. Staff/Planning Board workshop of 10-21-21: Avesta Meadowview project
d. ISM (bypass) solar project altering fencing
e. Minor additions to Hannaford signs

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Bruns Properties LLC site plan amendment review:
A request by Bruns Properties LLC, represented by Robert Emerson, for an amendment to an
approved Site Plan for a 3,500 sq. ft. addition to an existing building for
manufacturing/processing use on their property at 175 Portland Road, Tax Map 59, lots 36-25
& 21, owned by Bruns Properties LLC, in an established Contract Zoning Agreement approved
by the Gray Town Council on November 1, 2016. The parcel is partially located within a
Shoreland Zoning District and was formerly in a Commercial Zoning District. This proposal
triggers site plan review.

V. ADJOURNMENT

 
 

TOWN GRAY
PLANNING BOARD

AGENDA • OCTOBER 21, 2021

Planning Board
Regular Meeting

Online Via Zoom Videoconferencing
Link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87624992355

7:00 PM

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
* The Town of Gray is an equal opportunity employer and complies with all applicable equal access to
public accommodations law. If you are planning to attend a Town Council or Town committee or board

11



meeting and need assistance with a physical disability, please contact the Town Manager’s office at
least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to have the Town assist you. 657-3339. TTY 657-3931.

22



Town of Gray

Planning Board Minutes

September 9, 2021
(Meeting postponed until September 20, 2021)

Regular Meeting Henry Pennell Municipal Complex 7:00 PM

24 Main Street, Gray, ME 04039

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes                           Page 1  September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

I. MEETING COMMENCED AT 7:00pm
This meeting took place at Town Hall.

Attendee Name Title Status
Dan Cobb Vice Chair Present
Catherine Caswell Board Member Absent
Andrew Watson Alternate #2 Present
Tamara Lee Pinard Alternate #1 (elevated to Board Member during meeting) Present
Doug Webster Community Development / Acting Planner Present
Dan Maguire Town Council Liaison Present

Motion to appoint Andrew Watson and Tamara Lee Pinard as voting members for this meeting.

MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Dan Cobb, Vice Chair
AYES: Cobb, Caswell

II. MINUTES APPROVAL

1. Planning Board Minutes - Regular Meeting – August 12, 2021

    Catherine Caswell abstained as she was not in attendance for the August 12th meeting.

Motion to approve the Planning Board Minutes of August 12, 2021

RESULT: APPROVED [3-0]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Andrew Watson, Alternate
AYES: Cobb, Watson, Pinard
ABSTAINED: Caswell

Dan Cobb stated there was a vacancy due to Joe Caminiti not being able to attend due to his work commitments and he thanked him for 
the time he served on the board. He welcomed Tamara Lee Pinard and explained that, as alternate #1, she has the option to be promoted 

33



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 2 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

to full Board member. She accepted that option. Mr. Cobb also offered an apology to Andrew Watson that he was passed over and that 
the Town Council should have considered him to be first.

Motion: To promote alternate #1 Tamara Lee Pinard to full Planning Board member, for the 
remainder of the term vacated by Joe Caminiti.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Andrew Watson, Alternate
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

III. INFORMATION EXCHANGE

Dan Cobb explained that Don Hutchings had a one-year term and the Town Council had not taken final action on whether or not to re-
appoint him. He suspected that decision would happen at the September 21st Town Council meeting. Since Mr. Hutching’s term is in 
question, he was not at this meeting. Mr. Cobb thanked him for his service, the great job he did, and for bringing him onto the Planning 
Board.

Dan Cobb explained that the term of Charlie Abrams has expired, and he is no longer on the board. He thanked him for his insight and 
service. 

Dan Cobb explained that Peter Gellerson has resigned from the Planning Board. He had not yet had an opportunity to speak with him 
but thanked him for his service to the Planning Board and also the years he served on the Town Council. Mr. Cobb stated that both Mr. 
Gellerson and Mr. Hutchings have done a lot for the Town of Gray.

Dan Cobb said Catherine Caswell has been an alternate for quite some time and has been appointed as a full Board member. 

Dan Cobb said he is Vice Chair so he is speaking tonight since Chair Don Hutchings is not at the meeting. He said he would be willing 
to serve as Chair until they vote again in January. He asked for nominations for the role of Chair. Catherine Caswell nominated Dan 
Cobb for Chair. 

Motion: To elect Dan Cobb as Chair of the Planning Board until the end of the year.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Andrew Watson, Alternate
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

Dan Cobb asked for nominations for Vice Chair. He nominated Catherine Caswell. She stated she would like to have time to consider 
that and asked that it be determined at the next meeting.

Dan Cobb mentioned MMA had a training last week which he attended. Catherine Caswell and Tamara Lee Pinard also attended.
Andrew Watson was not able to attend.

Doug Webster passed out the proposed meeting calendar for 2022. He requested the board look it over as this will be on the agenda for 
the October meeting.

44



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 3 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Dan Cobb inquired of Dan Maguire if there was any information to share from the Town Council. Mr. Maguire echoed the sentiments 
about the contributions made by Charlie Abrams, Peter Gellerson, and Don Hutchings. He said they have the respect of the council 
even though there is a difference of opinion.

Catherine Caswell said she appreciates that Don Hutchings brought her onto the Planning Board, and also appreciates the work of Peter 
Gellerson and Charlie Abrams.

Dan Cobb said some amendments to committee rules happened in July. He would like to improve the collaboration between the Town 
Council and the Planning Board as he wasn’t even aware of changes until he looked into information recently. He thinks there would 
have been a better result if the Planning Board had been consulted.

Dan Maguire said he has suggested in the past that the Planning Board at least look at the council’s agenda so their opinions could be 
heard by the council. He said the council plans to make changes to committee rules at this week’s meeting. There are also plans for the 
joint meeting between the Town Council and the Planning Board.

Dan Cobb said his expectation is that, as liaison, Mr. Maguire should be proactive and bring pertinent information to the Planning 
Board during Information Exchange portions of meetings. 

Dan Maguire said there were some legal issues they were unaware of when rules were established. Over the last few weeks, the Town 
Attorney has informed them on these matters. 

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Gray Yarmouth Road Solar LLC:
A request by Gray Yarmouth Road Solar LLC for Conditional Use and Site Plan Review for a 33+/-
commercial solar energy system on a 102+/- acre parcel accessed at the end of Hillcrest Drive (near 51 
Yarmouth Rd) owned by the Sawyer & Dunn families on Tax Map 36, lot 33-1 in a Rural Residential & 
Agricultural Zoning District.

Chip Haskell, Civil Engineer of Haley Ward and John Motta of Dynamic Energy were present. Chip Haskell gave a brief overview of 
the project on land which used to be blueberry fields but is now rather dense and will be cleared. There is little wetland impact for the 
clearing. Solar panels will not be in the wetland, but that area needs to be cleared to prevent shading of panels. There will be a fence 
around the project.

Dan Cobb referenced Doug Webster’s Planner’s Memo and that there were points to discuss.

Doug Webster stated he had received a response today from the applicants regarding the Gorrill-Palmer peer review. He included that 
information in his memo. He will need to obtain comments back from Gorrill-Palmer. Chip Haskell said they provided the gradation, 
submitted the draft deed, and amended their calculations (ending up more conservative than with the original submission).

Dan Cobb inquired if the board had comments. Catherine Caswell was concerned about the ability for the public to have their say about 
this project. There were plenty of people at the site walk. She is glad stormwater has been addressed. She wants to make sure the 
residents have the ability to ask for assistance if the road is disturbed. Chip Haskell said Doug Webster is good about notifying abutters. 
Also, since they are obtaining DEP site permitting, there are notifications via certified mail and two notices in newspapers. He said 
there has been no lack of effort to notify residents; no one came to a meeting.

Dan Cobb discussed granting waiver of buffering. One option is to require a performance bond so they can see what it looks like after 
being grubbed out and in different seasons. He believes it is a good idea to require a performance bond. Catherine Caswell also 
supported having the bond as they should always be concerned about buffering. Andrew Watson also agreed it made sense to require a 
performance bond. Tamara Lee Pinard also agreed, especially since the pictures were from August.

55



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 4 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

John Motta referenced the four bonds in condition 12b. He said the first two were surprises. Mr. Cobb explained they were just 
discussing the screening at this point of the meeting, however, Mr. Motta said the tolerance of the bond for him is tied to the cumulative 
cost of the bonds.

Mr. Webster elaborated on the items in 12b. In reference to 12bii, this is financial security for the town; provides surety in cash in case 
the town needs to go in and secure the site if the applicant doesn’t follow DEP rules. Chip Haskell asked for a dollar amount for that. 
Mr. Webster indicated the town engineer needed to provide input on that matter, so he was not comfortable stating a dollar amount.

In reference to Erosion and Sedimentation, (12bi), Mr. Webster said that is typically around $5,000.00. This needs to be in place solely 
for the town to have the ability to go in and do a temporary stabilization (for example prior to a storm), during construction until the site 
is stabilized.

Mr. Motta had questions about building permit fees of $500.00 per acre. He wanted to understand what those fees go to. Mr. Webster 
explained they are fees that go to the general fund. Dan Cobb stated the Planning Board has no control over that fee.

Dan Cobb referenced padlocks/removable posts etc, referenced on page 5 of the Planner’s Memo. All four Planning Board members 
agreed to these recommendations of Gray Fire Rescue. Also mentioned on page 5 were concerns of potential damage to Hillcrest Drive 
as a result of construction of the CSESOD. All four members felt this has already been addressed and Dan Cobb pointed out it is 
covered in Mr. Webster’s suggested conditions of approval.

Dan Cobb opened the public hearing at 7:53pm. There were no public comments, so the public hearing was closed at 7:53pm.

Mr. Cobb said that the Board was to determine if the applicant meets conditional use criteria.

Motion: The Planning Board agrees that Gray Yarmouth Road Solar LLC meets conditional use 
criteria.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Tamara Pinard, Board Member
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

Dan Cobb then had the board members consider the three requested waivers; Impact Analysis, Planting Schedule, and Traffic Impact 
Analysis. He asked Mr. Webster if he is in favor. Mr. Webster said he recommends they approve the waivers for groundwater impact 
and traffic impact, and the planting waiver with a suggested bond. Mr. Cobb said they could also waive the planting schedule and still 
require a bond. Mr. Webster suggested the board consider waiving the groundwater impact analysis, traffic impact analysis, and 
conditionally waive the planting schedule and get a performance bond.

Motion: The Planning Board will grant waivers for groundwater impact analysis and traffic impact 
analysis and conditionally waive the planting schedule based on obtaining a performance bond.

66



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 5 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Tamara Pinard, Board Member
SECONDER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

Dan Cobb then referenced #7 on page 5 of the Planner’s Memo in reference to the price for the screening bond. Mr. Webster indicated 
it is a practical matter based on the number of trees needed. He referenced information he placed on page 4 of the Planner’s Memo, 

“As such, the cost of purchasing and professionally planting an adequately sized evergreen tree is likely in the $600 to $800 
range per tree. If a figure of $750 per tree is used, a $5K bond would allow for a total of 6 or so trees a bond of $7,500 would 
allow 10ish trees, and a $10K bond would allow for about 13 trees.”

Dan Cobb and the board discussed options and number of homeowners they thought would be impacted. He said there had been no 
input from homeowners. He explained they are not forcing the applicants to plant all of these, but they are reserving the option. They 
settled on enough to cover three properties. They settled on $10,000.00 which should allow for about 13 trees. Mr. Motta said that is 
reasonable.

Tamara Lee Pinard observed the information in the Planner’s Memo references “bond”, but the proposed motion says “escrow (not a 
bond)”. Mr. Motta said he had a question about that also.  Mr. Webster explained #11 in the proposed motion states that during the 
November after it is completed and operational, if additional screening is deemed necessary, the applicant will plan during the winter 
and install plantings during the following spring, using their own money or the money that is escrowed.

The board had additional conversation regarding the terms “bond” vs. “escrow”. Mr. Webster explained an escrow is financial surety 
but not in the form of a bond. This gives the town the ability to obtain the cash when/if needed. Bonds require other, often time-
consuming methods of obtaining the funds. Decommissioning can be a bond. He was making a distinction in 12b for 1, 2, and 4 to each 
be a cash surety, not a bond. Mr. Cobb mentioned other places say bond as well.

Catherine Caswell stated the motion subject to conditions 1 through 12 listed in the Planner’s Memo dated September 7, 2021 including 
a vegetation surety, not bond, of $10,000.00 to be secured. Dan Cobb also noted it should state lot 31, not 33-1.

Motion: The Planning Board approves the application submitted by Gray Yarmouth Road Solar LLC for 
a 4.99 mega watt Commercial Solar Energy System on a portion of a 102 acre parcel located at the end of 
Hillcrest Drive on Tax Map 36, lot 33-1 31 subject to the following conditions as listed in the Planner’s 
Memo dated September 7, 2021:

1. Standard Condition of approval #1 (not including de minimis)
2. Knox lock meeting Gray Department of Public Safety (GDPS) specifications for all gates.
3. The double-wide gate at the terminus of the access road shall either not have a center post or be

able to be removed without any tools or special knowledge.
4. The applicant shall submit necessary plans, documentation and information to address the 

comments from the Town's consulting engineer per their comments in the memo for the 9-9-21 
PB meeting.

5. The applicant is responsible for any outstanding PB fees.
6. On-site energy storage is specifically prohibited in accordance with Section 402.8.10.G.15.
7. The maximum size of any individual solar panel is 30 sq. ft. in accordance with standards 

established in Chapter 402 including 402.8.10.E.1.
8. The applicant is reminded that Section 402.8.10.G.14 requires that any change of ownership or 

operator requires approval by the Staff Review Committee.

77



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 6 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

9. The applicant and any party part of the construction shall keep the following parties apprised of 
the intended schedule with ample advance notice for the requisite party:

A. The Town's Code Enforcement Officer
B. The Town's consulting engineer
C. An appropriate party representing the Hillcrest Drive Road Association.

10. The Gray Code Enforcement Officer (CEO), with input from the Town's consulting engineer, 
shall have the authority to require a pre-construction meeting the commencement of 
construction prior to issuing a Building Permit for the facility.

11. In accordance with standards established in Section 402.8.10.I (Visual Impact), the applicant 
shall post a surety in an amount established in condition of approval #12 below for the purposes 
of planting evergreen trees to provide a year-round screen to residential properties if necessary. 
The first November 1st after the facility is fully completed and operational, the Town Planner 
shall send a USPS letter to all directly abutting property owners to the parcel with the facility
asking for input regarding if the screening is accurate. If there are one or more objections, the 
Town Planner and CEO shall visit the facility and determine if additional screening is 
warranted. If additional screening is deemed necessary, the applicant has the option of
installing additional evergreen trees, per a plan approved by the CEO, or the escrow shall be 
used for the screening. Any tree planting shall be completed the following spring. Any appeals
of such determinations shall be made to the Gray Planning Board.

12. Prior to Issuing a Building Permit:
A. The applicant shall submit the following to the Gray CEO:

i. Full copy of the Electrical permit obtained from the State of Maine
ii. Full copy of the final operations and maintenance plan
iii. Construction plan and timeline per 402.8.10.B.6
iv. Full copy of any non-municipal required permits including any permits necessary from 

the Maine Department of Environmental Protection.
B. The applicant shall be responsible for duly establishing all of the following sureties at the 

applicants expense:
i. Erosion and Sedimentation escrow (not a bond) in an amount reviewed and approved by 

the Town's consulting engineer
ii. Inspection escrow (not a bond) in an amount reviewed approved by the Town's consulting 

engineer.
iii. A decommissioning surety in accordance with standards established in Section 402.8.10.J

in a form deemed acceptable by the Town's Finance Director in an amount reviewed and 
approved by the Gray CEO with input from the Town's consulting engineer.

iv. A buffering/screening escrow (not a bond) for $10,000.00 be used for purposes set forth 
in Condition of approval #11 above.

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Tamara Pinard, Board Member
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

Mr. Motta had additional questions regarding who is on the Staff Review Committee, mentioned in condition #8. Mr. Webster 
explained that would consist of the Code Enforcement Officer, Town Planner, and usually the Planning Board Chair. This is 
specifically required in the performance standards; to not bring anything new to the table so any new owner/operator is aware of the 
building permit and Planning Board approval.

88



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 7 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

b. Proposed Amendments to VC/VCP District Design Standards: 
Public input and Public Hearing on proposed amendments to Section 402.8.3 (Village Center District 
Standards) of the Zoning Ordinance and adopt new Design Standards that would apply to new and renovated 
residential and accessory structures in the Village Center Proper (VCP) and Village Center (VC) Districts.

Doug Webster provided an overview. He mentioned the current moratorium went into effect about five months ago. The intention was 
to come up with design standards applicable for VC and VCP for residential structures. Sections 1, 2, and 3 are already on the books for 
commercial structures. Section 4 is new and focuses on residential structures.

Dan Cobb opened the public hearing at 8:19pm. There were no public comments, so the public hearing was closed at 8:19pm.

Catherine Caswell said she appreciates the work of the council and advisory committee and hopes this will make the town more 
inviting for people to stop at. Andrew Watson said it reminded him of form-based planning and he is glad to see Gray falling in step 
with other places around the country in order to have a nice-looking village, a centerpiece. 

Tamara Lee Pinard appreciated the form-based code inspiration. She also noted usage of indigenous plants and prohibition of invasive 
plants were mentioned but she did not see that referenced in the commercial section. Doug Webster made note of that suggestion to 
make that suggested revision when sections 1, 2, and 3 get revised.

Dan Cobb raised the subject of “guidelines” vs. “standards”. He pointed out the Family Dollar (now Dollar General) project ran into 
issues of guidelines vs. standards. Due to that, the Planning Board was severely limited in what they could ask the developer for and 
therefore, in his opinion, it isn’t the best building in the VC. He said it would have been better if they had more to work with as the 
developer was not interested in creating anything other than their “cookie cutter” type of building. Since the Planning Board had 
“guidelines” instead of “standards” to work with, there wasn’t much the Planning Board could do to change matters. Therefore, he 
would prefer this language to state “standards” instead of “guidelines”. Mr. Webster indicated Mr. Cobb had made a good point.

     V. NEW BUSINESS

a. Bruns Properties LLC:

A request for pre-application conference by Bruns Properties LLC for an amendment to an approved Site 
Plan Review for a 3,500 sq. ft. addition for manufacturing/processing use on their property a 175 
Portland Road, Tax Map 59, lots 36-25 & 21 in accordance with a Contract Zoning Agreement adopted 
by the Gray Town Council on November 1, 2016. The parcel was formerly in a Commercial Zoning 
District.

Catherine Caswell called a Point of Order to inform the Planning Board she may have a conflict of interest as she socializes with 
the Bruns family and is distantly related. Chair Cobb asked if she felt she could render an impartial decision, to which she said 
yes. He also asked if she had a financial interest in this to which she stated no. Mr. Cobb provided his opinion that he did not 

99



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 8 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

believe this would be a conflict of interest. Mr. Watson didn’t see a conflict either. Mr. Webster indicated it would be prudent to 
vote on this.

Motion: To request that Catherine Caswell recuse herself from this matter regarding Bruns Bros. due 
to a possible conflict of interest.

RESULT: FAILED [3-0]
MOVER: Tamara Lee Pinard, Board Member
SECONDER: Andrew Watson, Board Member
AYES: None
NAYES: Cobb, Watson, Pinard
ABSTAINED: Caswell

Robert Emerson was present, representing Bruns Bros. He said he liked working with Doug Webster and the Code Enforcement 
Officer on this project and thanked them for their help. He explained they have a laser cutter and a water cutter. He explained the 
design of water trucks causes need for their repairs. They want to have an addition so trucks can back up to the overhead door and 
the overhead crane can be used. All remains the same near the property and he doesn’t think it would cause traffic issues.

Doug Webster explained this is a contract zone and this is a permitted use. The Town Attorney said due to the language in the 
contract zone, it does not need an amendment to the contract zone. Mr. Webster said it just needs amended site plan approval.

Dan Cobb referenced page 8 of the Planner’s memo in reference to exterior lighting. Mr. Emerson indicated there have not been 
negative comments regarding shielded lights. New ones would be the same as their existing ones. 

Doug Webster indicated Planning Board feedback is sought so the applicant will have that information to prepare a formal 
application. Dan Cobb asked the board members if they needed more building elevations, etc. and they all indicated no. They also 
discussed the curb cuts. Mr. Emerson said he has a letter from years ago, from Steve Lavallee, regarding the Long Hill curb cut.

Mr. Cobb also referenced parking of tractor trailers, but not other vehicles, and inquired if the board members felt that needed to 
appear on a plot plan. They all indicated it wasn’t necessary.

Mr. Cobb asked what was required regarding landscaping. Mr. Webster said he and Mr. Emerson have discussed this. He said if 
this triggers site plan, they maybe should add additional buffering/screening and he referenced work done by Patient Advocates 
about eight or nine years ago. He asked the board if they felt it would be appropriate for screening on the berm separating Portland 
Road from this property.

Mr. Emerson explained why he doesn’t think this is feasible due to the fact they don’t own 20’, it is actually a 3-lane wide road 
even though we only see two lanes. Planting would be therefore done half way down and would need to be very tall plantings. He 
further explained they have magnolias and linden trees. Two died in the winter so they have ordered three more lindens. Any 
additional screening in the area being discussed would have to be really high up in order to not see the building. Mr. Webster 
suggested possibly something at the base of the berm as the property seems really open. Mr. Cobb requested that Mr. Webster 
sketch out his ideas when the application comes in.

Mr. Cobb asked the board if they wanted a site walk and they indicated no. Mr. Emerson would like to get this on the October 
agenda. Mr. Webster will work with him later this week. Mr. Emerson it will most likely be Ken Bruns attending the next meeting 
about this as Mr. Emerson will be away.

1010



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 9 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

b. Stillwater Subdivision Phase II:

A request by Birchpoint Properties LLC & A.H. Grover Inc., for sketch plan review for Phase II of a 
proposed residential open space subdivision (Stillwater Pines) consisting of 14 lots on 30+/- acres 
accessed from Woodcock Drive off Yarmouth Road on portion of Tax Map 44, lot 32-112 in accordance 
with a Contract Zoning Agreement adopted by the Gray Town Council on March 16, 2021. The parcel 
was formerly in Medium Density and Rural Residential & Agricultural Zoning Districts.

Charlie Burnham of Atlantic Resource Consultants was present. He provided a display as they have made some adjustments. Stream 
crossing was done during Phase 1. There are eight more lots now; small at about 20,000 square feet. They will be served by public 
water. There are some wetland areas to avoid. He asked if the Planning Board had any concerns.

Doug Webster explained they will need to obtain a Site Location of Development permit from DEP which can take several months to 
obtain. Therefore, it is important to get preliminary town approval prior to going to DEP. He said Phase I had items come up between 
preliminary and final. He hopes to help Mr. Burnham have items straightened out with this phase prior to going to DEP so Mr. 
Burnham won’t have to submit amendments.

Dan Cobb referenced Mr. Webster’s comments in his Planning Memo and wanted to make sure Mr. Burnham was aware of them.
Discussions regarding these items took place, especially in reference to stormwater, the possibility of grading easements on lots 18, 19,
20 unless there are retaining walls, and the ROW. Mr. Burnham indicated he doesn’t think the ROW is buildable. He said he needed to 
include it for connectivity but there isn’t really anything to connect to as the abutting land is very wet and very steep. Mr. Webster 
suggested the ROW shouldn’t be on the plan if it is not viable to build. Mr. Burnham agreed but said it was pushed on them. Dan 
Maguire explained it was there from the CZA standpoint as the goal of an open space ordinance is to not land-lock the development. He 
also agreed that if you can’t build on it, it doesn’t make sense to include it.

Mr. Burnham requested advice on possible locations of a stormwater pond, asking if it is preferred to be placed in the first phase of
open space, incorporate in back of town part, or other options. Mr. Webster said it would depend on location and noted there have been 
lots of discussions about the common park area; they wouldn’t want to compromise open space and it shouldn’t be in the buffer or 
common park area. Mr. Webster also suggested they try to decrease the steepness of the stream crossing to the public land.

Mr. Burnham said they have already sold out of Phase I properties. He will proceed with this project and come back to the Planning 
Board.

   VI. Motion to Adjourn at 9:19 p.m.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Tamara Pinard, Board Member
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

1111



1212



1313



1414



1515



1616



1717



1818



1919



2020



2121



2222



2323



2424



2525



2626



2727



2828



2929



3030



3131



3232



3333



3434



Town of Gray

Planning Board Minutes

September 9, 2021
(Meeting postponed until September 20, 2021)

Regular Meeting Henry Pennell Municipal Complex 7:00 PM

24 Main Street, Gray, ME 04039

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes                           Page 1  September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

I. MEETING COMMENCED AT 7:00pm
This meeting took place at Town Hall.

Attendee Name Title Status
Dan Cobb Vice Chair Present
Catherine Caswell Board Member Absent
Andrew Watson Alternate #2 Present
Tamara Lee Pinard Alternate #1 (elevated to Board Member during meeting) Present
Doug Webster Community Development / Acting Planner Present
Dan Maguire Town Council Liaison Present

Motion to appoint Andrew Watson and Tamara Lee Pinard as voting members for this meeting.

MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Dan Cobb, Vice Chair
AYES: Cobb, Caswell

II. MINUTES APPROVAL

1. Planning Board Minutes - Regular Meeting – August 12, 2021

    Catherine Caswell abstained as she was not in attendance for the August 12th meeting.

Motion to approve the Planning Board Minutes of August 12, 2021

RESULT: APPROVED [3-0]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Andrew Watson, Alternate
AYES: Cobb, Watson, Pinard
ABSTAINED: Caswell

Dan Cobb stated there was a vacancy due to Joe Caminiti not being able to attend due to his work commitments and he thanked him for 
the time he served on the board. He welcomed Tamara Lee Pinard and explained that, as alternate #1, she has the option to be promoted 

35



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 2 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

to full Board member. She accepted that option. Mr. Cobb also offered an apology to Andrew Watson that he was passed over and that 
the Town Council should have considered him to be first.

Motion: To promote alternate #1 Tamara Lee Pinard to full Planning Board member, for the 
remainder of the term vacated by Joe Caminiti.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Andrew Watson, Alternate
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

III. INFORMATION EXCHANGE

Dan Cobb explained that Don Hutchings had a one-year term and the Town Council had not taken final action on whether or not to re-
appoint him. He suspected that decision would happen at the September 21st Town Council meeting. Since Mr. Hutching’s term is in 
question, he was not at this meeting. Mr. Cobb thanked him for his service, the great job he did, and for bringing him onto the Planning 
Board.

Dan Cobb explained that the term of Charlie Abrams has expired, and he is no longer on the board. He thanked him for his insight and 
service. 

Dan Cobb explained that Peter Gellerson has resigned from the Planning Board. He had not yet had an opportunity to speak with him 
but thanked him for his service to the Planning Board and also the years he served on the Town Council. Mr. Cobb stated that both Mr. 
Gellerson and Mr. Hutchings have done a lot for the Town of Gray.

Dan Cobb said Catherine Caswell has been an alternate for quite some time and has been appointed as a full Board member. 

Dan Cobb said he is Vice Chair so he is speaking tonight since Chair Don Hutchings is not at the meeting. He said he would be willing 
to serve as Chair until they vote again in January. He asked for nominations for the role of Chair. Catherine Caswell nominated Dan 
Cobb for Chair. 

Motion: To elect Dan Cobb as Chair of the Planning Board until the end of the year.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Andrew Watson, Alternate
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

Dan Cobb asked for nominations for Vice Chair. He nominated Catherine Caswell. She stated she would like to have time to consider 
that and asked that it be determined at the next meeting.

Dan Cobb mentioned MMA had a training last week which he attended. Catherine Caswell and Tamara Lee Pinard also attended.
Andrew Watson was not able to attend.

Doug Webster passed out the proposed meeting calendar for 2022. He requested the board look it over as this will be on the agenda for 
the October meeting.

36



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 3 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Dan Cobb inquired of Dan Maguire if there was any information to share from the Town Council. Mr. Maguire echoed the sentiments 
about the contributions made by Charlie Abrams, Peter Gellerson, and Don Hutchings. He said they have the respect of the council 
even though there is a difference of opinion.

Catherine Caswell said she appreciates that Don Hutchings brought her onto the Planning Board, and also appreciates the work of Peter 
Gellerson and Charlie Abrams.

Dan Cobb said some amendments to committee rules happened in July. He would like to improve the collaboration between the Town 
Council and the Planning Board as he wasn’t even aware of changes until he looked into information recently. He thinks there would 
have been a better result if the Planning Board had been consulted.

Dan Maguire said he has suggested in the past that the Planning Board at least look at the council’s agenda so their opinions could be 
heard by the council. He said the council plans to make changes to committee rules at this week’s meeting. There are also plans for the 
joint meeting between the Town Council and the Planning Board.

Dan Cobb said his expectation is that, as liaison, Mr. Maguire should be proactive and bring pertinent information to the Planning 
Board during Information Exchange portions of meetings. 

Dan Maguire said there were some legal issues they were unaware of when rules were established. Over the last few weeks, the Town 
Attorney has informed them on these matters. 

IV. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Gray Yarmouth Road Solar LLC:
A request by Gray Yarmouth Road Solar LLC for Conditional Use and Site Plan Review for a 33+/-
commercial solar energy system on a 102+/- acre parcel accessed at the end of Hillcrest Drive (near 51 
Yarmouth Rd) owned by the Sawyer & Dunn families on Tax Map 36, lot 33-1 in a Rural Residential & 
Agricultural Zoning District.

Chip Haskell, Civil Engineer of Haley Ward and John Motta of Dynamic Energy were present. Chip Haskell gave a brief overview of 
the project on land which used to be blueberry fields but is now rather dense and will be cleared. There is little wetland impact for the 
clearing. Solar panels will not be in the wetland, but that area needs to be cleared to prevent shading of panels. There will be a fence 
around the project.

Dan Cobb referenced Doug Webster’s Planner’s Memo and that there were points to discuss.

Doug Webster stated he had received a response today from the applicants regarding the Gorrill-Palmer peer review. He included that 
information in his memo. He will need to obtain comments back from Gorrill-Palmer. Chip Haskell said they provided the gradation, 
submitted the draft deed, and amended their calculations (ending up more conservative than with the original submission).

Dan Cobb inquired if the board had comments. Catherine Caswell was concerned about the ability for the public to have their say about 
this project. There were plenty of people at the site walk. She is glad stormwater has been addressed. She wants to make sure the 
residents have the ability to ask for assistance if the road is disturbed. Chip Haskell said Doug Webster is good about notifying abutters. 
Also, since they are obtaining DEP site permitting, there are notifications via certified mail and two notices in newspapers. He said 
there has been no lack of effort to notify residents; no one came to a meeting.

Dan Cobb discussed granting waiver of buffering. One option is to require a performance bond so they can see what it looks like after 
being grubbed out and in different seasons. He believes it is a good idea to require a performance bond. Catherine Caswell also 
supported having the bond as they should always be concerned about buffering. Andrew Watson also agreed it made sense to require a 
performance bond. Tamara Lee Pinard also agreed, especially since the pictures were from August.

37



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 4 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

John Motta referenced the four bonds in condition 12b. He said the first two were surprises. Mr. Cobb explained they were just 
discussing the screening at this point of the meeting, however, Mr. Motta said the tolerance of the bond for him is tied to the cumulative 
cost of the bonds.

Mr. Webster elaborated on the items in 12b. In reference to 12bii, this is financial security for the town; provides surety in cash in case 
the town needs to go in and secure the site if the applicant doesn’t follow DEP rules. Chip Haskell asked for a dollar amount for that. 
Mr. Webster indicated the town engineer needed to provide input on that matter, so he was not comfortable stating a dollar amount.

In reference to Erosion and Sedimentation, (12bi), Mr. Webster said that is typically around $5,000.00. This needs to be in place solely 
for the town to have the ability to go in and do a temporary stabilization (for example prior to a storm), during construction until the site 
is stabilized.

Mr. Motta had questions about building permit fees of $500.00 per acre. He wanted to understand what those fees go to. Mr. Webster 
explained they are fees that go to the general fund. Dan Cobb stated the Planning Board has no control over that fee.

Dan Cobb referenced padlocks/removable posts etc, referenced on page 5 of the Planner’s Memo. All four Planning Board members 
agreed to these recommendations of Gray Fire Rescue. Also mentioned on page 5 were concerns of potential damage to Hillcrest Drive 
as a result of construction of the CSESOD. All four members felt this has already been addressed and Dan Cobb pointed out it is 
covered in Mr. Webster’s suggested conditions of approval.

Dan Cobb opened the public hearing at 7:53pm. There were no public comments, so the public hearing was closed at 7:53pm.

Mr. Cobb said that the Board was to determine if the applicant meets conditional use criteria.

Motion: The Planning Board agrees that Gray Yarmouth Road Solar LLC meets conditional use 
criteria.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Tamara Pinard, Board Member
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

Dan Cobb then had the board members consider the three requested waivers; Impact Analysis, Planting Schedule, and Traffic Impact 
Analysis. He asked Mr. Webster if he is in favor. Mr. Webster said he recommends they approve the waivers for groundwater impact 
and traffic impact, and the planting waiver with a suggested bond. Mr. Cobb said they could also waive the planting schedule and still 
require a bond. Mr. Webster suggested the board consider waiving the groundwater impact analysis, traffic impact analysis, and 
conditionally waive the planting schedule and get a performance bond.

Motion: The Planning Board will grant waivers for groundwater impact analysis and traffic impact 
analysis and conditionally waive the planting schedule based on obtaining a performance bond.

38



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 5 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Tamara Pinard, Board Member
SECONDER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

Dan Cobb then referenced #7 on page 5 of the Planner’s Memo in reference to the price for the screening bond. Mr. Webster indicated 
it is a practical matter based on the number of trees needed. He referenced information he placed on page 4 of the Planner’s Memo, 

“As such, the cost of purchasing and professionally planting an adequately sized evergreen tree is likely in the $600 to $800 
range per tree. If a figure of $750 per tree is used, a $5K bond would allow for a total of 6 or so trees a bond of $7,500 would 
allow 10ish trees, and a $10K bond would allow for about 13 trees.”

Dan Cobb and the board discussed options and number of homeowners they thought would be impacted. He said there had been no 
input from homeowners. He explained they are not forcing the applicants to plant all of these, but they are reserving the option. They 
settled on enough to cover three properties. They settled on $10,000.00 which should allow for about 13 trees. Mr. Motta said that is 
reasonable.

Tamara Lee Pinard observed the information in the Planner’s Memo references “bond”, but the proposed motion says “escrow (not a 
bond)”. Mr. Motta said he had a question about that also.  Mr. Webster explained #11 in the proposed motion states that during the 
November after it is completed and operational, if additional screening is deemed necessary, the applicant will plan during the winter 
and install plantings during the following spring, using their own money or the money that is escrowed.

The board had additional conversation regarding the terms “bond” vs. “escrow”. Mr. Webster explained an escrow is financial surety 
but not in the form of a bond. This gives the town the ability to obtain the cash when/if needed. Bonds require other, often time-
consuming methods of obtaining the funds. Decommissioning can be a bond. He was making a distinction in 12b for 1, 2, and 4 to each 
be a cash surety, not a bond. Mr. Cobb mentioned other places say bond as well.

Catherine Caswell stated the motion subject to conditions 1 through 12 listed in the Planner’s Memo dated September 7, 2021 including 
a vegetation surety, not bond, of $10,000.00 to be secured. Dan Cobb also noted it should state lot 31, not 33-1.

Motion: The Planning Board approves the application submitted by Gray Yarmouth Road Solar LLC for 
a 4.99 mega watt Commercial Solar Energy System on a portion of a 102 acre parcel located at the end of 
Hillcrest Drive on Tax Map 36, lot 33-1 31 subject to the following conditions as listed in the Planner’s 
Memo dated September 7, 2021:

1. Standard Condition of approval #1 (not including de minimis)
2. Knox lock meeting Gray Department of Public Safety (GDPS) specifications for all gates.
3. The double-wide gate at the terminus of the access road shall either not have a center post or be

able to be removed without any tools or special knowledge.
4. The applicant shall submit necessary plans, documentation and information to address the 

comments from the Town's consulting engineer per their comments in the memo for the 9-9-21 
PB meeting.

5. The applicant is responsible for any outstanding PB fees.
6. On-site energy storage is specifically prohibited in accordance with Section 402.8.10.G.15.
7. The maximum size of any individual solar panel is 30 sq. ft. in accordance with standards 

established in Chapter 402 including 402.8.10.E.1.
8. The applicant is reminded that Section 402.8.10.G.14 requires that any change of ownership or 

operator requires approval by the Staff Review Committee.

39



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 6 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

9. The applicant and any party part of the construction shall keep the following parties apprised of 
the intended schedule with ample advance notice for the requisite party:

A. The Town's Code Enforcement Officer
B. The Town's consulting engineer
C. An appropriate party representing the Hillcrest Drive Road Association.

10. The Gray Code Enforcement Officer (CEO), with input from the Town's consulting engineer, 
shall have the authority to require a pre-construction meeting the commencement of 
construction prior to issuing a Building Permit for the facility.

11. In accordance with standards established in Section 402.8.10.I (Visual Impact), the applicant 
shall post a surety in an amount established in condition of approval #12 below for the purposes 
of planting evergreen trees to provide a year-round screen to residential properties if necessary. 
The first November 1st after the facility is fully completed and operational, the Town Planner 
shall send a USPS letter to all directly abutting property owners to the parcel with the facility
asking for input regarding if the screening is accurate. If there are one or more objections, the 
Town Planner and CEO shall visit the facility and determine if additional screening is 
warranted. If additional screening is deemed necessary, the applicant has the option of
installing additional evergreen trees, per a plan approved by the CEO, or the escrow shall be 
used for the screening. Any tree planting shall be completed the following spring. Any appeals
of such determinations shall be made to the Gray Planning Board.

12. Prior to Issuing a Building Permit:
A. The applicant shall submit the following to the Gray CEO:

i. Full copy of the Electrical permit obtained from the State of Maine
ii. Full copy of the final operations and maintenance plan
iii. Construction plan and timeline per 402.8.10.B.6
iv. Full copy of any non-municipal required permits including any permits necessary from 

the Maine Department of Environmental Protection.
B. The applicant shall be responsible for duly establishing all of the following sureties at the 

applicants expense:
i. Erosion and Sedimentation escrow (not a bond) in an amount reviewed and approved by 

the Town's consulting engineer
ii. Inspection escrow (not a bond) in an amount reviewed approved by the Town's consulting 

engineer.
iii. A decommissioning surety in accordance with standards established in Section 402.8.10.J

in a form deemed acceptable by the Town's Finance Director in an amount reviewed and 
approved by the Gray CEO with input from the Town's consulting engineer.

iv. A buffering/screening escrow (not a bond) for $10,000.00 be used for purposes set forth 
in Condition of approval #11 above.

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Tamara Pinard, Board Member
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

Mr. Motta had additional questions regarding who is on the Staff Review Committee, mentioned in condition #8. Mr. Webster 
explained that would consist of the Code Enforcement Officer, Town Planner, and usually the Planning Board Chair. This is 
specifically required in the performance standards; to not bring anything new to the table so any new owner/operator is aware of the 
building permit and Planning Board approval.

40



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 7 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

b. Proposed Amendments to VC/VCP District Design Standards: 
Public input and Public Hearing on proposed amendments to Section 402.8.3 (Village Center District 
Standards) of the Zoning Ordinance and adopt new Design Standards that would apply to new and renovated 
residential and accessory structures in the Village Center Proper (VCP) and Village Center (VC) Districts.

Doug Webster provided an overview. He mentioned the current moratorium went into effect about five months ago. The intention was 
to come up with design standards applicable for VC and VCP for residential structures. Sections 1, 2, and 3 are already on the books for 
commercial structures. Section 4 is new and focuses on residential structures.

Dan Cobb opened the public hearing at 8:19pm. There were no public comments, so the public hearing was closed at 8:19pm.

Catherine Caswell said she appreciates the work of the council and advisory committee and hopes this will make the town more 
inviting for people to stop at. Andrew Watson said it reminded him of form-based planning and he is glad to see Gray falling in step 
with other places around the country in order to have a nice-looking village, a centerpiece. 

Tamara Lee Pinard appreciated the form-based code inspiration. She also noted usage of indigenous plants and prohibition of invasive 
plants were mentioned but she did not see that referenced in the commercial section. Doug Webster made note of that suggestion to 
make that suggested revision when sections 1, 2, and 3 get revised.

Dan Cobb raised the subject of “guidelines” vs. “standards”. He pointed out the Family Dollar (now Dollar General) project ran into 
issues of guidelines vs. standards. Due to that, the Planning Board was severely limited in what they could ask the developer for and 
therefore, in his opinion, it isn’t the best building in the VC. He said it would have been better if they had more to work with as the 
developer was not interested in creating anything other than their “cookie cutter” type of building. Since the Planning Board had 
“guidelines” instead of “standards” to work with, there wasn’t much the Planning Board could do to change matters. Therefore, he 
would prefer this language to state “standards” instead of “guidelines”. Mr. Webster indicated Mr. Cobb had made a good point.

     V. NEW BUSINESS

a. Bruns Properties LLC:

A request for pre-application conference by Bruns Properties LLC for an amendment to an approved Site 
Plan Review for a 3,500 sq. ft. addition for manufacturing/processing use on their property a 175 
Portland Road, Tax Map 59, lots 36-25 & 21 in accordance with a Contract Zoning Agreement adopted 
by the Gray Town Council on November 1, 2016. The parcel was formerly in a Commercial Zoning 
District.

Catherine Caswell called a Point of Order to inform the Planning Board she may have a conflict of interest as she socializes with 
the Bruns family and is distantly related. Chair Cobb asked if she felt she could render an impartial decision, to which she said 
yes. He also asked if she had a financial interest in this to which she stated no. Mr. Cobb provided his opinion that he did not 

41



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 8 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

believe this would be a conflict of interest. Mr. Watson didn’t see a conflict either. Mr. Webster indicated it would be prudent to 
vote on this.

Motion: To request that Catherine Caswell recuse herself from this matter regarding Bruns Bros. due 
to a possible conflict of interest.

RESULT: FAILED [3-0]
MOVER: Tamara Lee Pinard, Board Member
SECONDER: Andrew Watson, Board Member
AYES: None
NAYES: Cobb, Watson, Pinard
ABSTAINED: Caswell

Robert Emerson was present, representing Bruns Bros. He said he liked working with Doug Webster and the Code Enforcement 
Officer on this project and thanked them for their help. He explained they have a laser cutter and a water cutter. He explained the 
design of water trucks causes need for their repairs. They want to have an addition so trucks can back up to the overhead door and 
the overhead crane can be used. All remains the same near the property and he doesn’t think it would cause traffic issues.

Doug Webster explained this is a contract zone and this is a permitted use. The Town Attorney said due to the language in the 
contract zone, it does not need an amendment to the contract zone. Mr. Webster said it just needs amended site plan approval.

Dan Cobb referenced page 8 of the Planner’s memo in reference to exterior lighting. Mr. Emerson indicated there have not been 
negative comments regarding shielded lights. New ones would be the same as their existing ones. 

Doug Webster indicated Planning Board feedback is sought so the applicant will have that information to prepare a formal 
application. Dan Cobb asked the board members if they needed more building elevations, etc. and they all indicated no. They also 
discussed the curb cuts. Mr. Emerson said he has a letter from years ago, from Steve Lavallee, regarding the Long Hill curb cut.

Mr. Cobb also referenced parking of tractor trailers, but not other vehicles, and inquired if the board members felt that needed to 
appear on a plot plan. They all indicated it wasn’t necessary.

Mr. Cobb asked what was required regarding landscaping. Mr. Webster said he and Mr. Emerson have discussed this. He said if 
this triggers site plan, they maybe should add additional buffering/screening and he referenced work done by Patient Advocates 
about eight or nine years ago. He asked the board if they felt it would be appropriate for screening on the berm separating Portland 
Road from this property.

Mr. Emerson explained why he doesn’t think this is feasible due to the fact they don’t own 20’, it is actually a 3-lane wide road 
even though we only see two lanes. Planting would be therefore done half way down and would need to be very tall plantings. He 
further explained they have magnolias and linden trees. Two died in the winter so they have ordered three more lindens. Any 
additional screening in the area being discussed would have to be really high up in order to not see the building. Mr. Webster 
suggested possibly something at the base of the berm as the property seems really open. Mr. Cobb requested that Mr. Webster 
sketch out his ideas when the application comes in.

Mr. Cobb asked the board if they wanted a site walk and they indicated no. Mr. Emerson would like to get this on the October 
agenda. Mr. Webster will work with him later this week. Mr. Emerson it will most likely be Ken Bruns attending the next meeting 
about this as Mr. Emerson will be away.

42



Minutes Planning Board September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

Town of Gray Planning Board Minutes Page 9 September 9 (postponed to September 20), 2021

b. Stillwater Subdivision Phase II:

A request by Birchpoint Properties LLC & A.H. Grover Inc., for sketch plan review for Phase II of a 
proposed residential open space subdivision (Stillwater Pines) consisting of 14 lots on 30+/- acres 
accessed from Woodcock Drive off Yarmouth Road on portion of Tax Map 44, lot 32-112 in accordance 
with a Contract Zoning Agreement adopted by the Gray Town Council on March 16, 2021. The parcel 
was formerly in Medium Density and Rural Residential & Agricultural Zoning Districts.

Charlie Burnham of Atlantic Resource Consultants was present. He provided a display as they have made some adjustments. Stream 
crossing was done during Phase 1. There are eight more lots now; small at about 20,000 square feet. They will be served by public 
water. There are some wetland areas to avoid. He asked if the Planning Board had any concerns.

Doug Webster explained they will need to obtain a Site Location of Development permit from DEP which can take several months to 
obtain. Therefore, it is important to get preliminary town approval prior to going to DEP. He said Phase I had items come up between 
preliminary and final. He hopes to help Mr. Burnham have items straightened out with this phase prior to going to DEP so Mr. 
Burnham won’t have to submit amendments.

Dan Cobb referenced Mr. Webster’s comments in his Planning Memo and wanted to make sure Mr. Burnham was aware of them.
Discussions regarding these items took place, especially in reference to stormwater, the possibility of grading easements on lots 18, 19,
20 unless there are retaining walls, and the ROW. Mr. Burnham indicated he doesn’t think the ROW is buildable. He said he needed to 
include it for connectivity but there isn’t really anything to connect to as the abutting land is very wet and very steep. Mr. Webster 
suggested the ROW shouldn’t be on the plan if it is not viable to build. Mr. Burnham agreed but said it was pushed on them. Dan 
Maguire explained it was there from the CZA standpoint as the goal of an open space ordinance is to not land-lock the development. He 
also agreed that if you can’t build on it, it doesn’t make sense to include it.

Mr. Burnham requested advice on possible locations of a stormwater pond, asking if it is preferred to be placed in the first phase of
open space, incorporate in back of town part, or other options. Mr. Webster said it would depend on location and noted there have been 
lots of discussions about the common park area; they wouldn’t want to compromise open space and it shouldn’t be in the buffer or 
common park area. Mr. Webster also suggested they try to decrease the steepness of the stream crossing to the public land.

Mr. Burnham said they have already sold out of Phase I properties. He will proceed with this project and come back to the Planning 
Board.

   VI. Motion to Adjourn at 9:19 p.m.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Catherine Caswell, Board Member
SECONDER: Tamara Pinard, Board Member
AYES: Cobb, Caswell, Watson, Pinard

43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66


	Planning Board Agenda
	Item II.a - PB Minutes - 09202021.doc
	Item III.a - InfoExchange.PacketDocsRedacted.pdf
	Item IV.a - PublicHearing.Bruns.PacketDocsRedacted.pdf

